
a 2

HUNDRED AND TWENTIETH
MEETING

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
on Wednesday, 24 November 1948, at 3.30 p.ni.

Chairman: Mr. R. ]. ALFARO (Panama).

70. Continuation of the consideration of
the memorandum of the Secretary­
General relating to reparation for
injuries incurred in the service of
the United Nations

The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee was
called upon to take a decision as regards the sub­
stantive part of the draft resolution submitted by
the Egyptian delegation [A/C.6/279], as amended
by the delegation of the Soviet Union [AjC.6/
284]. He said that his attention had been called
to a change which the USSR delegation wished
to make in its text before it was put to the vote;
namely, that the words "by taking action in the
responsible national courts" should be replaced by
the words "and also to file suit in the appropriate
national courts".

The Chairman stated that in his opmion such
a change would be one of substance and would,
therefore, be out of order.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) recalled that at the 119th meeting the
representative of Australia had quite rightly asked
for some explanations on the USSR amendment.
Mr. Morozov had just realized that the English
text of his amendment did not correctly express
what he had in mind.

His amendment was intended to specify that in
order to obtain reparation, the United Nations
had the right not only to approach the responsible
de jure or de facto Government through regular
diplomatic channels but also to take action in the
appropriate national courts.

Mr. Morozov did not think that that was a sub­
stantive amendment since the original text mis­
represented the author's intention. The Commit­
tee should therefore vote on an accurate text
which exactly conveyed the ideas on which the
amendment was based.

Mr. MAKTOS (United States of America),
while sympathizing with the intentions of the rep­
resentative of the Soviet Union, recalled that, at
the 119th meeting, the Chairman had ruled that
a very slight last-minute modification which he
had proposed was out of order. If only for the
sake of fairness, the Chairman could not declare
in order the amendment which the USSR repre­
sentative had just proposed.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) thought that
the Chairman was right in not taking it upon him­
self to decide to accept last-minute amendments.
Nevertheless, it was in the Committee's interests
to vote on the clearest possible text. Thus, since
the representative of the Soviet Union was sub­
mitting an amendment which expressed his mean­
ing better, the Committee had the power to

CENT-VINGTIEME SEANCE

Tenue alt Palais de Chailloi, Paris,
le mercredi 24 nouembre 1948, a15 h. 30.

President: M. R. ]. ALFARO (Panama).

70. Suite de Pexamen du memorandum
du Seeretaire general concernant Ies
reparations pour dommages corpo­
rels suhis au service des Nations
Unies

Le PRESIDENT declare que la Commission est
appelee a se prononcer sur le dispositif du projet
de resolution presente par la delegation de
l'Egypte [AjC.6/279], amen ne par la delegation
de l'Union sovietique [A/(.,~.6/284]. Il indique
qu'on vient de lui signaler une modification que
la delegation de l'URSS desirerait voir apporter
a son texte avant le vote; il s'agirair de remplacer
les mots: by ta.king action: in the responsible
national courts (en exercant un recours devant les
tribunaux nationaux competents) par les mots:
and also to file suit in the approp.iate natipnal
courts (et aussi d'exercer un recours devant les
tribunaux nationaux competents},

Le President declare que, a son avis, cette
proposition constitue une modification de fond et
qu'elle est, par consequent, irrecevable.

M. MOROZOV (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) rappelle que, lors de la Ugetne
seance, le representant de l' Australie a demande
quelques eclaircissements au sujet de l'amende­
ment de l'URSS, et cela a juste titre. M. Morozov
vient de constater, en effet, que le texte anglais
de cet amendement ne reflete pas exactement sa
pensee.

I1 declare que son amendement vise a preciser
que, en vue d'obtenir reparation, 1'Organisation
des Nations Unies a la faculte, non seulement de
faire des representations aupres du Gouverne­
ment de jure ou de facto responsable par la voie
diplomatique ordinaire, mais aussi d'exercer un
recours devant 1es tribunaux nationaux compe­
tents.

M. Morozov ne pense pas qu'il y ait la une
modification de fond, puisque le texte initial
trahit les intentions de son auteur. I1 convient
que la Commission se prononce sur un texte
precis qui expose avec exactitude les idees qui
font l'objet de 1'amendement.

M. MAKTOS (Etats-Unis d'Amerique}, tout
en exprimant sa sympathie pour 1es intentions qui
animent le representant de l'Union sovietique,
rappelle que, lors de la 11~me seance, le President
a declare irrecevab1e un tres leger amendement
de derniere heure qu'il avait propose. Le Presi­
dent ne saurait maintenant, ne ffrt-ce que pour
des raisons d'equite, declarer recevable l'amen­
clement que vient de presenter le representant de
l'URSS.

M. KAECKENBEECK (Be1gique) declare que le
President a raison de ne pas decider lui-meme de
prendre en consideration des amendements de
derniere heure. Ceci dit, la Commission a tout
interet a se prononcer sur un texte aussi clair
que possible. Aussi, puisque le representant de
l'Union sovietique presente une modification qui
traduit mieux sa pensee, la Commission a la



decide that it was in order, subject, of course, to
the agreement of the Egyptian representative.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt) recalled that at the 119th
meeting, he had drawn the Committee's attention
to the need for making a few amendments to the
text of the draft resolution. Those amendments had
been made and they had in no way affected the
substance of the resolution. According to the latest
amendment, the United Nations would first ap­
proach the responsible State and, only if it re­
ceived no satisfaction, would it take action in the
appropriate national courts. That was how he had
understood the USSR amendment.

Mr. "CHAUMONT (France) said that he had al­
ways interpreted the amendment in the way the
Soviet Union and Egyptian representatives ex­
plained it. It had been understood that action in
the appropriate national courts in no way pre­
cluded action through the ordinary diplomatic
channels. If that had not been the case, the French
delegation would not have supported the amend­
ment.

Mr. Chaumont was consequently of the opinion
that the proposed drafting change in no way af­
fected the substance of the resolution and asked
that the delegations, which had hitherto shown a
very conciliatory spirit, should be allowed to vote
on a text which accurately expressed their ideas.

In reply to Mr. TARAZI (Syria), who asked
whether the change proposed by the USSR repre­
sentative was a matter of substance or of pro­
cedure, the CHAIRMAN stated that in view of the
divergent opinions which had been expressed that
was for the Committee itself to decide.

At the request of Mr. FITZMAURICE (United
Kingdom), the CHAIRMAN read the English text
of the operative part of the draft resolution with
the final amendment to it: H • • • to make any
pertinent application to the responsible de jure
or de facto Government, and also to file suit in
the appropriate national courts ...".

Prince Wan WAITHAYAKON (Siam) wished to
know the French translation of that part of the
amendment, since the representative of the Soviet
Union had only objected to the English text.

The CHAIRMAN read the French text of the
part in question: U • • • de presenter . . . toute
demande pertinente au Gouvernement de jure ou
de facto responsable, en esercont un recours de­
uont les tribwnaux nationauz competents . . .",

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) pointed
out that the text of the French translation corre­
sponded to the original English text.

The CHAIRMAN stated that the French text
would be concorded with the English text if the
latter were adopted.

Mr. MAKTOS (United States of America) was
still of the opinion that the amendment proposed
by the USSR affected the substance of the resolu­
tion. He thought that modification should not be
considered since the Chairman had declared the
United States amendment out of order at the
1191h meeting.

faculte de la declarer recevable, sous reserve, bien
entendu, de l'approbation du representant de
I'Egypte.

M. RAAFAT (Egypte) rappelle que, lors de la
II~me seance, it a attire l'attention de la Com­
mission sur la necessite d'apporter quelques
modifications au texte du projet de resolution.
Celles-ci sont maintenant effectuees et n'affectent
en rien le fond de la resolution. D'apres la der­
niere modification, l'Organisation des Nations
Unies s'adresserait, en premier lieu, it l'Etat
defendeur et n'exercerait un recours devant les
tribunaux nationaux competents que si elle n'ob­
tenait pas satisfaction. C'est dans ce sens qu'il
a compris l'amendement de I'URSS.

M. CHAUMONT (France) declare qu'il a tou­
jours interprete cet amendement dans le sens que
lui preterit les representants de l'Union sovietique
et de l'Egypte. Il etait, en effet, entendu que le
recours exerce devant les tribunaux nationaux
competents n'empecherait pas le recours par la
voie diplomatique ordinaire. S'il en etait autre­
ment, la delegation francaise n'aurait pas accepte
l'amendement.

M. Chaumont estime, en consequence, que le
changement de redaction propose ne touche nulle­
ment le fond de la resolution et demande que 1'0n
permette aux delegations, qui ont jusqu'ici fait un
tres grand effort de conciliation, de voter sur un
texte qui reflete avec exactitude leur pensee,

En reponse it M. T ARAZI (Syrie) qui demande
si la modification proposee par le representant de
I'URSS souleve une question de fond ou une
question de procedure, le PRESIDENT declare qu'en
raison des divergences de vues qui se sont mani­
festees, it appartient it la Commission elle-meme
de se prononcer en la matiere,

A la demande de M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume­
Uni), le PRESIDENT donne lecture du texte anglais
definitif du dispositif du projet de resolution dont
la partie qui vient d'etre modifiee se lit comme
suit: u . . . to make amy pertin8nt application to the
responsible de jure or de facto Government and
also to file suit in the appropriate national
courts ...",

Le prince Wan WAITHAYAKON (Siam) desire
connaitre les termes dans lesquels est redigee la
traduction francaise de cette partie de l'amende­
ment, puisque le representant de I'Union sovie­
tique n'en a critique que la traduction anglaise.

Le PRESIDENT donne lecture du texte francais
de la partie en question, qui se lit comme suit:
H ••• de presenter ... toute demande pertinente
au Gouvernement de jure ou de facto responsable,
en exercant un recours devant les tribunaux natio­
naux competents ...".

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) fait re­
marquer que .le texte de la traduction francaise
correspond au texte anglais initial.

Le PRESIDENT declare que le texte francais sera
mis en harmonie avec le texte anglais si ce
dernier est vote.

M. MAKTOS (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) persiste
it croire que la modification proposee par l'URSS
affecte le fond meme de la resolution. Il considere
qu'il n'y a pas lieu de prendre oette modification
en consideration, puisque, lors de la 11geme se­
ance, le President a declare que l'amendement des
Etats-Unis etait irrecevable.



Mr. CORREA (Ecuador) proposed that the ques­
tion of whether the modification proposed by the
representative of the Soviet Union was or was not
in order should be put to the vote.

The CHAIRMAN agreed to the suggestion made
by the Ecuadorian representative.

Mr. Monozov (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) objected to the proposal to put to a vote
the question of whether the modification he had
suggested was in order. That modification raised
no question of substance; it was merely a matter
of wording the amendment in terms which would
express his intention most accurately. What he
wanted was to focus attention on the two possible
methods of obtaining reparation; one by diplo­
matic channels, tthe other by filing suit in the ap­
propriate national courts. Rejection of the modi­
fication he had proposed would simply mean that
some delegations would be forced to vote against
an amendment of which they were the authors.

Mr. MAKTOS (United States of America)
thought that if the modification suggested by the
Soviet Union representative was declared in
order, the principle of equality of treatment would
have been violated.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) said that it
was not a matter of violating the equality of
treatment to which all members of the Committee
were entitled. The amendment proposed by the
United States representative, however, had been
a real amendment, whereas in the present case a
simple improvement in drafting proposed by the
author of the amendment himself was involved.

Mr. Kaeckenbeeck thought that nothing in the
rules of procedure prevented the Committee from
declaring it in order even if it contained a sub­
stantive modification.

He would vote against the draft resolution but
he believed that the modification suggested by the
USSR was in order.

Mr. SPIROPOULOS (Greece) asked the Chair­
man to put the question to the vote without fur­
ther delay.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the question
whether the drafting modification suggested at
the last minute by the representative of the Soviet
Union was in order.

It was decided by 22 votes to none, with 17
abstentions that the modification was in order.

Prince Wan WAITHAYAKON (Siam) still
thought the modification affected the substance
of the resolution; he had abstained from voting
against it because it had been presented by the
authors of the amendment themselves.

Mr. MAKTOS (United States of America)
thanked the Chairman for having left it to the
Committee to decide whether or not the proposal
of the USSR representative was in order.

The CHAIRMAN called on the Committee to vote
on the operative part of the draft resolution sub­
mitted by the Egyptian delegation as amended by
the USSR delegation and taking into account
the last-minute modification.

Mr. LITOVTCHENKO (Ukrainian Soviet So­
cialist Republic) asked for a roll-call vote.

1\1. CORREA (Equateur) propose de mettre aux
voix la question de savoir si la modification pro­
posee par le representant de l'Union sovietique
est recevable.

Le PRESIDENT accepte la suggestion faite par
le representant de l'Equateur.

M. Monozov (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) s'eleve contre la proposition
tendant a mettre aux voix la question de la
recevabilite de la modification qu'il vient de pro­
poser. Cette modification ne souleve, selon lui,
aucune question de fond; il s'agit simplement de
formuler l'amendement en des termes qui refletent
avec exactitude la pensee de son auteur. Or, le
representant de I'URSS desire mettre l'accent sur
les deux recours en reparation possibles, run
par voie diplomatique, l'autre devant les tribu­
naux nationaux competents, Rejeter la modifica­
tion qu'il a proposee reviendrait tout simplement
a obliger certaines delegations a voter contre un
amendement dont elles sont les auteurs.

M. MAKTos (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) estime
que si 1'0n declarait recevable la modification pro­
posee par l'Union sovietique, on porterait atteinte
au principe de l'egalite de traitement.

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique) declare qu'il
n'est pas question de porter atteinte a l'egalite de
traitement auquel tous les membres de la Commis­
sion ont droit. Mais, dans le cas de la modification
proposee par le representant des Etats-Unis, il
s'agissait d'un veritable amendement; dans le cas
present, il s'agit d'une amelioration de redaction
proposee par l'auteur meme de l'amendement.

M. Kaeckenbeeck considere que rien, dans le
reglement interieur, n'interdit a. la Commission
de le declarer recevable meme s'il comportait une
modification de fond.

Le representant de la Belgique votera contre
le projet de resolution mais il appuie le principe
de la recevabilite de la modification proposee par
l'URSS.

M. SPIROPOULOS (Grece) demande au Presi­
dent de mettre immediatement la question aux
VOlX.

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix la question de la
recevabilite de la modification de redaction pro­
posee en derniere heure par le representant de
l'Union sovietique,

Par 22 uoi« contre zero, avec 17 abstentions,
cette modification. est declaree receuable.

. Le prince Wan WAITHAYAKON (Siam) con­
sidere toujours que la modification affecte le
fond rneme de la resolution; s'il s'est abstenu de
voter contre, c'est parce qu'elle etait presentee
par les auteurs rnemes de l'amendement.

M. MAKTOS (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) remercie
le President de s'en etre remis a. la Commission
pour decider de la recevabilite de la proposition
du representant de l'URSS.

Le PRESIDENT invite la Commission a. voter
sur le dispositif du projet de resolution presente
par la delegation de l'Egypte et amende par la
delegation de l'URSS, compte tenu de la modifica­
tion de derniere heure.

M. LITOVTCHENKO (Republique socialiste so­
vietique d'Ukraine) demande que le vote ait lieu
par appel nominal.

1XX Tr- TW



A vote was taken by roll-call.
The United Kingdom) having been drawn by

lot by the Chairman) voted first:
In favOltr: Yugoslavia, Byelorussiau Soviet So­

cialist Republic, Czechoslovakia, Egypt, France,
Pakistan, Poland, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Re­
public, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics.

Against: United Kingdom, United States of
America, Argentina, Australia, Belgium, Bolivia,
Brazil, Burma, Canada, Chile, China, Colombia,
Denmark, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Greece,
India, Iran, Luxembourg, Netherlands, Paraguay,
Peru, Siam, Sweden, Syria, Union of South
Africa.

Abstaining: Uruguay, Venezuela, Yemen, Af­
ghanistan, New Zealand, Norway, Saudi Arabia.

The operative part of the draft resolution was
rejected by 26 votes to 9) 'with 7 abstentions.

Mr. SUNDARAM (India) said he had voted
against the Egyptian draft resolution for three
reasons.

First, that resolution prejudged the question
whether the United Nations was competent to
claim reparation for bodily injuries caused to its
employees; that competence had been questioned
and it was advisable to await the verdict of the
International Court of Justice on that point.

Secondly, supposing the United Nations was
competent to claim reparation, the Egyptian reso­
lution would not achieve the Committee's purpose;
any such claim should be handled either through
diplomatic negotiations or by recourse to a court
of arbitration, and not by action in the courts of
the defendant State.

Finally, the Egyptian draft resolution restricted
the amount which the United Nations could claim
in reparation for the indemnity which it had paid
to the victims.

Mr. BAMMATE (Afghanistan) stated that, al­
though he had been in favour of the Egyptian
draft resolution, he had abstained from voting
because he felt that so many differences of opinion
had been expressed in connexion with it during
the discussion that it would have lacked the neces­
sary authority had it been adopted. The Inter­
national Court of Justice should therefore be re­
quested to give its opinion.

Mr. ABDoH (Iran) recalled that he had sug­
gested that the Committee should first vote on the
Egyptian draft resolution. He had made that
suggestion because he thought that if the Com­
mittee reached a decision on the Egyptian draft
resolution, it would have resolved a question of
principle, namely, whether it should decide the
problem immediately or whether it should wait
for the opinion of the International Court of
Justice. He had voted against the Egyptian draft
resolution because he felt it was preferable to
consult the Court as that would give greater
weight to the action taken by the United Nations.
Mr. Abdoh requested the representative of Egypt
to support the joint French and Iranian draft
proposal [A/C.6/285] when it was put to the
vote, since it reproduced the preamble to the
Egyptian draft resolution.

/l est procede au vote par appcl nominal.
Vappel COmmence par le Royaume-Uni, doni le

nom est tire au sort par le President.
Votent pour: Yougoslavie, Republique socia­

liste sovietique de Bielorussie, Tchecoslovaquie,
Egypte, France, Pakistan, Pologne, Republique
socialiste sovietique d'Ukraine, Union des Re­
publiques socialistes sovietiques,

Votent conire: Royaume-Uni, Etats-Unis
d'Amerique, Argentine, Australie, Belgique, Bo­
livie, Bresil, Birmanie, Canada, Chili, Chine,
Colombie, Danemark, Republique Dominicaine,
Equateur, Grece, Inde, Iran, Luxembourg, Pays­
Bas, Paraguay, Perou, Siam, Suede, Syrie, Union
Sud-Africaine.

S'abstiennent: Uruguay, Venezuela, Yemen,
Afghanistan, Nouvelle-Zelande, Norvege, Arabie
saoudite.

Par 26 uois centre 9) avec 7 abstentions) le
dispositif du projet de resolution est rejete.

M. SUNDARAM (Inde) declare qu'il a vote
contre le projet de resolution de l'Egypte pour
trois raisons.

En premier lieu, ce projet prejuge la question
de savoir si l'Organisation des Nations Unies a
qualite pour formuler une demande en reparation
pour dommages corporels causes a ses -c)nction­
naires; cette competence de l'Organisation souleve
des doutes et il convient, sur ce point, d'attendre
l'avis que donnera la Cour internationale de
Justice.

En second lieu, a supprimer qUI: l'Organisation
ait qualite pour formuler une dernande en repara­
tion, la proposition de l'Egypte n'atteint pas le
but poursuivi par la Comrnission; toute reclama­
tion de cette nature devrait etre tranchee par voie
de negociations diplomatiques ou par recours a
un tribunal arbitral, et non par une action intentee
devant les tribunaux de l'Etat defendeur,

Enfin, le projet de resolution de l'Egypte limite
le montant de la reparation que pourra exiger
l'Organisation a l'indemnite qu'elle a versee aux
victimes.

M. BAMMATE (Afghanistan) declare que, bien
que partisan du projet de resolution de l'Egypte,
il s'est neanmoins abstenu, car tant de divergences
de vues se sont manifestees au cours de la discus­
sion qu'une decision favorable au projet de
l'Egypte n'aurait pas donne a ce projet toute
l'autorite necessaire, Aussi convient-il de de­
mander l'opinion de la Cour internationale de
Justice. .

M. ABDOH (Iran) rappelle qu'il avait propose
que la Commission votat en premier lieu sur le
projet de resolution de l'Egypte. Il avait fait cette
proposition parce qu'il pensait qu'en se pronon­
cant sur le projet egyptien, la Commission
trancherait une question de principe: celle de
savoir si la Commission devait se prononcer
immediatement sur le probleme ou attendre, pour
ce fa ire, l'avis de la Cour internationale de J us­
tice. Le representant de l'Iran a vote contre le
projet de resolution de l'Egypte car il estime pre­
ferable de demander l'avis de la Cour, ce qui
donnerait une autorite plus grande aux mesures
que pourrait prendre l'Organisation des Nations
Unies. M. Abdoh demande au representant de
l'Egypte d'appuyer la proposition commune de la
France et de l'Iran [A/C.6/285] Iorque celle-ci
sera mise aux voix, car elle reprend les conside­
rants du projet de resolution de l'Egypte.

4Q



....
Mr. CORREA (Ecuador) said that the discussion

in the Committee had shown that a decision could
not yet be taken on the substance of the problem.
The delegation of Ecuador had voted against the
draft resolution submitted by the Egyptian dele­
gation and felt that it would be advisable to ask
for the authoritative opinion of the International
Court of Justice.

Mr. DE MARCHENA DUJARRIC (Dominican Re­
public) considered that the Egyptian draft resolu­
tion prejudged the decision to be taken on the
question whether the United Nations had capacity
to bring an action for reparation. He added that in
that field the legal provisions in force on the
American continent could not be evaded. It was
for that reason tuat he had voted against the
Egyptian draft resolution.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt) felt that, in voting as it
had just done, the Committee had questioned the
competence of the United Nations to claim repara­
tion for the injuries sustained by its officials. He
declared, on behalf of his Government, that no
request for reparation formulated by the United
Nations would be considered by "he Egyptian
Government until the International Court of
Justice had given its opinion.

Mr. FELLER (Secretariat) recalled that at the
beginning of the debate on the question (112th
meeting) he had stated that the Secretary-General
considered that he was authorized to bring an
action before national courts. Several representa­
tives and, finally, the Rapporteur of the Commit­
tee, had expressed the same point of view. Arti­
cles 104 and 97 of the Charter conferred that
authority on the Secretary-General. He had,
moreover, already exercised that right in other
cases. The Secretariat considered that the rejec­
tion of the Egyptian and USSR proposals had in
no way affected that authority.

Referring to the question whether the Secre­
tary-General could or could not present a claim
for reparation on an international level, the Sec­
retariat considered that the rej ection of the Egyp­
tian proposal did not by any means constitute a
negative decision on that matter by the Commit­
tee. The Secretary-General should obviously wait
until the Committee had taken a decision on the
question.

Finally, the Secretary-General considered that
the rejection of that proposal did not in any way
imply disapproval of the measures which he had
already taken.

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) agreed
with the explanations given by Mr. Feller. He
did not share the point of view expressed by the
Egyptian representative. The vote which the Com­
mittee had just taken did not question the Secre­
tary-General's right to claim reparation in national
courts. In that connexion the Charter and the
Convention on Privileges and Immunities author­
ized the Secretary-General to take action in na­
tional courts. All they left in doubt was whether
the United Nations could claim reparation on an
international level.

The United Kingdom representative concluded
by stating that he had voted against the Egyptian
draft resolution because it had nothing to do with

M. CORREA (Equateur) declare que la discus­
sion a. laquelle la Commission a precede a montre
que le moment n'etait pas encore venu de prendre
une decision sur le fond du probleme. Aussi la
delegation de l'Equateur pense-t-elle qu'il convient
de demander l'avis autorise de la Cour interna­
tionale de Justice et s'est-elle prononcee contre
le projet de resolution de l'Egypte.

M. DE MARCHENA DUJARRIC (Republique Do­
minicaine) considere que le projet de resolution
de l'Egypte prejuge la decision qui sera prise sur
la question de savoir si l'Organisation des Nations
Unies a qualite pour intenter une action en repara­
tion. Il ajoute qu'on ne peut, en ce domaine,
eluder les dispositions juridiques en vigueur clans
le continent americain, C'est pourquoi il s'est
prononce contre le projet de resolution de
l'Egypte.

M. RAAFAT (Egypte) estime gue, par le vote
auquel e1le vient de proceder, la Commission met
en doute la competence de l'Organisation pour
reclamer reparation des dommages subis par ses
fonctionnaires. Il declare, au nom de son Gouver­
nement, qu'aucune demande de reparation for­
mules par l'Organisation des Nations Unies ne
sera prise en consideration par le Gouvernement
egyptien avant que la Cour internationale de
Justice ait donne son avis.

M. FELLER (Secretariat) rappelle qu'au debut
de la discussion sur cette question (llzeme

seance), il a declare que le Secretaire general con­
sidere qu'il a qualite pour intenter une action
devant les tribunaux nationaux. Plusieurs repre­
sentants et, en dernier lieu, le Rapporteur de la
Commission, ont expose le meme point de vue.
Ce sont les Articles 104 et 97 de la Charte qui
conferent cette auto rite au Secretaire general. I1
I'a d'ailleurs exercee d'ores et deja dans d'autres
cas. Le Secretariat considere que le rejet de la
proposition de l'Egypte et de l'URSS n'a, en
aucune facon, porte atteinte a cette autorite.

En ce qui concerne la question de savoir si le
Secretaire general peut ou non presenter une
demande en reparation sur le plan international,
le Secretariat estime que le rejet de la propo­
sition egyptienne ne constitue nullement, a cet
egard, une decision negative de la Commission.
Le Secretaire general devra, evidemment, attendre
que la Commission se prononce sur ce point.

Enfin, le Secretaire general considere que le
rejet de cette proposition n'implique en aucune
facon une desapprobation des mesures qu'il a
prises jusqu'a present.

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) approuve
les explications presentees par M. Feller et ne
partage nullement le point de vue du representant
de l'Egypte. Le vote auquel la Commission vient
de proceder ne met pas en doute le droit pour le
Secretaire general de formuler une demande en
reparation devant les tribunaux nationaux. A cet
egard, la Charte et la Convention sur les privi­
leges et les immunites autorisent le Secretaire
general a. ester en justice devant les tribunaux
nationaux. Elles mettent seulement en doute la
possibilite pour l'Organisation des Nations Unies
de formuler une demande en reparation sur le
plan international.

Le representant du Royaume-Uni conclut en
declarant qu'il a vote contre le projet de resolution
de l'Egypte, car ce projet n'a rien a voir avec la



= a ; Z: iili!a!UGI

the question raised by the Secretary-General as
to the international legal personality of the United
Nations and, as no one had questioned the fact
that the Secretary-General could bring an action
before national courts, the Egyptian draft pro­
posal was obviously unnecessary in that connexion.

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) considered that the
vote which the Committee had just taken should
not have the effect of discouraging the United Na­
tions in its efforts to obtain compensation for the
victims. The task of the Comm" tee was to find the
best means of ensuring legal protection of the
victims' rights.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) thought the
Egyptian draft resolution which he had voted
against, had tended to undermine the rights of the
United Nations. It had subordinated the rights of
the United Nations as regards reparation to a
decision taken by the naticnal courts of the coun­
tries responsible. The Belgian representative ap­
proved of Mr. Feller's explanations and consid­
ered that he hac interpreted the vote correctly.

Mr. AMADO (Brazil) shared the points of view
of the United Kingdom and Belgian representa­
tives. The result of the vote did not in any way
affect the right of the United Nations to bring
an action in the courts of the State responsible.
The Brazilian delegation shared the doubts ex­
pressed by the Secretary-General and therefore
felt that the Committee should vote in favour of the
Belgian proposal as soon as possible.

Mr. SPIROPOULOS (Greece) agreed with Mr.
Feller's statement. There was no doubt as to the
right of the United Nations to bring an action
in national courts. The provisions of section I of
the Convention on Privileges and Immunities
proved that fact. The Greek representative had
voted against the Egyptian proposal because he
felt that it contained a legal contradiction: it re­
ferred to the idea of international responsibility,
but only mentioned resort to national courts.

Mr. DIGNAM (Australia) said that the Chair­
man should decide that the explanations given
by Mr. Feller fully corresponded to the way in
which the Sixth Committee interpreted the vote
it had just taken.

Mr. DE BEUS (Netherlands) had voted against
the Egyptian draft resolution for three reasons.

First, it was premature to assert that the United
Nations had the right to bring an international
claim for reparations against the responsible State.

Secondly, he did not approve of the conception
of an international claim for reparation as it ap­
peared in the text of the Egyptian proposal.

Finally, he could not accept the restriction on
the amount of damages as laid down in the Egyp­
tian draft resolution. He thought the General
Assembly could benefit from the authoritative ad­
vice of the International Court of Justice.

• r ••11' S ,. .• 1 I Ea..question posee par e ecretaire genera sur a
personnalite juridique internationale de l'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies et, d'autre part, per­
sonne ne mettant en doute la possibiliie pour le
Secretaire general d'intenter une action devant
les tribunaux nationaux, le projet egyptien est,
sur ce point, manifestement inutile.

M. CHAUMONT (France) considere que le vote
auquel la Commission vient de proceder ne doit
pas avoir pour effet de decourager l'Organisation
des Nations Unies dans ses efforts pour indern­
niser les victimes. 11 ajoute que la tache de la
Commission est de rechercher les moyens les
meilleurs pour que la protection des droits des
victimes soit assuree.

M. KAECKENBEECK (Be1gique) pense que le
projet de resolution de l'Egypte, contre lequel il
s'est prononce, portait en fait atteinte aux droits
des Nations Unies. En effet, ce projet subordon­
nait les droits de l'Organisation des Nations Unies
en matiere de reparation a une decision que
prendraient les tribunaux nationaux du pays
responsable. Le representant de la Belgique ap­
prouve les explications de M. Feller et estime
que le vote a bien la signification qu'il lui a
donnee.

M. AMADO (Bresil) partage le point de vue des
representants du Royaume-Uni et de la Belgique.
Le resultat du vote ne porte en rien atteinte au
droit que possede I'Organisation des Nations
Unies d'intenter une action devant les tribunaux
de l'Etat responsable. La delegation bresilienne
partage les doutes emis par le Secretaire general;
c'est pourquoi elle estime que la Commission
devrait se prononcer au plus tot en faveur de la
proposition de la Belgique.

M. SPIROPOULOS (Grece) approuve la declara­
tion de M. Feller. Le droit pour l'Organisation
des Nations Unies d'intenter une action devant les
tribunaux nationaux ne fait aucun doute. Les
dispositions de la section I de la Convention sur
les privileges et les immunites en sont le preuve.
Le representant de la Grece a vote contre la
proposition de l'Egypte, car il estime que cette
proposition presente une contradiction juridique:
elle fait allusion r.. la notion de responsabilite
internationale, mais pourtant ne mentionne que le
recours aux tribunaux nationaux.

M. VIGNAM (Australie) declare que le Presi­
dent devrait decider que les explications donnees
par M. Feller correspondent bien a la facon dont
la Sixierne Commission interprete le vote auquel
e1le vient de proceder. .

M. DE BEUs (Pays-Bas) declare qu'il a vote
contre le projet de resolution de l'Egypte pour
trois raisons,

En premier lieu, il est premature d'affirmer
que l'Organisation des Nations Unies a le droit
de presenter une demande de reparation inter­
nationale a l'Etat responsable.

En outre, le representant des Pays-Bas n'ap­
prouve pas la notion de demande de reparation
internationale telle qu'elle ressort du texte de la
proposition egyptienne.

Enfin, M. de Beus ne peut accepter la limitation
du montant des dommages telle qu'elle est fixee
par le projet de resolution egyptien, 11 estime
que l'Assemblee generale tirerait avantage d'un
avis autorise de la Cour internationale de Justice.

598



He agreed with Mr. Feller's explanations.

Mr. PESCATORE (Luxembourg) disagreed with
the interpretation given by the Egyptian repre­
sentative. He agreed with Mr. Fellers explana­
tions and the remarks of the Belgian and 1'1ether­
lands representatives.

Mr. GORI (Colombia) fully appreciated the
reasons which had given rise to the Egyptian
resolution. He had voted against that proposal
because he had felt that it limited the rights of the
United Nations as regards reparations.

Mr. MAKTos (United States of America) fully
approved of Mr. Feller's explanations. The United
States delegation considered that the United Na­
tions had the right to submit an international
claim for reparation. He had voted against the
Egyptian draft resolution because he felt that the
claim for reparation for injuries inflicted on an
individual should be made by the State of which
he was a national.

Mr. FEAvER (Canada) considered that the
amendment to the Egyptian draft resolution had
quite altered the meaning of that proposal. He
supported the proposal of the Australian repre­
sentative that the Committee should be asked to
endorse the interpretation of the vote given by the
representative of the Secretariat.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt) adhered to the inter­
pretation he had already given. He felt that if
the Committee asked for the opinion of the Inter­
national Court of Justice on the right of the
United Nations to bring an action, it would mean
that it had doubts regarding the actual existence
of that right.

Mr. ORIBE (Uruguay) said he had abstained
from voting. He approved the solution of request­
ing an opinion from the International Court of
Justice, not because he doubted the existence of
the right but because he considered that the
authoritative opinion of the Court would
strengthen that right. He agreed with the explana­
tions given by Mr. Feller.

Mr. TARAzI (Syria) had opposed the Egyptian
draft resolution because in his proposal [AIC.6I
276] he had asked that the Committee should refer
the question to the International Law Commis­
sion tor examination. He did not think that there
was any doubt as to the existence of the right, but
that the right in question did not exist at all and
would have to be created by an international con­
vention drawn up by the International Law Com­
mission. He shared the Egyptian representative's
point of view on the interpretation to be given
to the vote.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said he had voted for the Egyptian draft
resolution as he felt that that draft answered the
Secretariat's question in a practical way. That
draft had recognized that the United Nations
could submit, through diplomatic channels, a
claim for reparation in connexion with injuries
incurred by its officials. He considered that it
would be useless to overlook that aspect of the
Egyptian proposal.

Par ailleurs, le representant des Pays-Bas ap­
prouve les explications donnees par M. Feller.

M. PESCATORE (Luxembourg) s'oppose a l'in­
terpretation donnee par le representant de
l'Egypte et approuve les explications de M. Feller,
ainsi que les declarations des representants de la
Belgique et des Pays-Bas.

M. GORI (Colombie) apprecie a Ieur juste
valeur les motifs dont procedait le projet de reso­
lution de 1'Egypte. S'il a vote contre ce projet,
c'est qu'il a estime que celui-ci limitait les droits
de 1'Organisation des Nations Unies en rnatiere
de reparation.

M. MAKTos (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) donne
son entiere approbation aux explications de
M. Feller. La delegation des Etats-Unis considere
queI'Organisation des Nations Unies a le droit
de presenter une demande de reparation interna­
tionale. M. Maktos s'est prononce contre le projet
de resolution de l'Egypte parce qu'il estime que
la demande en reparation pour dommages causes
a un individu doit etre formulee par l'Etat dont
cet individu est ressortissant,

M. FEAvER (Canada) considere que les amende­
ments apportes au projet de resolution de l'Egypte
ont entierement modifie le sens de ce projet. 11
appuie par ailleurs la proposition du representant
de l'Australie visant a demander a la Commis­
sion de reprendre a son compte l'interpretation du
vote donnee par le representant" du Secretariat.

M. RAAFAT (Egypte) maintient l'interpretation
qu'il a deja exposee, 11 estime que, si la Commis­
sion demande 1'avis de la Cour internationale de
Justice sur le droit de l'Organisation a intenter
une action, c'est qu'elle a des doutes sur I'exis­
tence meme de ce droit.

M. ORIBE (Uruguay) declare s'etre abstenu
lors du vote. Il preconise la solution visant a
demander 1'avis de la Cour internationale de
Justice, non parce qu'il a des doutes sur
l'existence du droit, mais parce qu'il estime que
l'avis autorise de la Cour contribuerait a ren­
forcer ce droit. Enfin, le representant de l'Uru­
guay approuve les explications donnees par
M. Feller.

M. T ARAZI (Syrie) s'est prononce contre le
projet de resolution de 1'Egypte parce qu'il a, par
une proposition [AIC.61276], demande que la
Commission renvoie la question a l'examen de la
Commission du droit international. Il pense, non
pas qu'il y a doute sur l'existence du droit, mais
que le droit envisage n'existe meme pas et qu'il
doit etre cree par une convention internationale
qu'elaborerait la Commission du droit inter­
national. Par ailleurs, M. Tarazi partage le point
de vue du representant de l'Egypte sur l'interpre­
tation qu'il convient de dormer au vote.

M. Monozov (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) declare qu'il a vote en faveur
du projet de resolution de l'Egypte car il estime
que ce projet resolvait de facon pratique la ques­
tion posee par le Secretariat. Ce projet recon­
naissair a l'Organisation des Nations Unies la
possibilite de formuler par voie diplomatique une
demande en reparation des dommages subis par
ses agents. M. Morozov estime qu'il serait vain
d'ignorer cet aspect de la proposition de l'Egypte.

599



He also felt that the Committee could only in­
terpret the vote by a unanimous .lecision. It
would be contrary to the rules of procedure to
take a decision and then, ul the interpretation of
that decision, to adopt a new one which might be
diametrically opposed to it. Mr. Morozov recalled
that Mr. Maktos, when Chairman of the Ad Hoc
Committee on Genocide, had emphasized the fact
that there could be no question of the interpreta­
tion of a vote. As his delegation had hitherto only
submitted amendments the representative of the
Soviet Union reserved his position on the gen­
eral problem examined by the Committee.

Mr. PETREN (Sweden) stated that he had
voted against the Egyptian draft resolution and
that he agreed with the explanations given by
Mr. Feller.

Mr. TARAZI (Syria) raised a point of order and
recalled that the Chairman had stated at the
118tli meeting that it would be useless to vote on
the preamble of the Egyptian draft resolution if
the operative part were rejected. The Syrian rep­
resentative observed that the Egyptian proposal
had a preamble of one paragraph only and that
its operative part was divided into two sections.
He felt that the Committee had only rejected the
second section of the operative part and suggested
that the first section referring to the approval of
measures already taken by the Secretary-General
should be put to the vote, unless the Egyptian
representative withdrew that part of his proposal.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt) withdrew the remaining
part of his draft resolution.

The CHAIRMAN recalled that the Australian
representative had asked that it should. be noted
in the summary record that Mr. Feller's statement
was the correct interpretation of the vote taken
by the Committee on the Egyptian draft resolu­
tion. The Chairman said that it would be difficult
for him to take a decision in that connexion with­
out first consulting the Committee.

Mr. DIGNAM (Australia) saw no objection to
the Committee being asked to indicate its opinion
on the request he had made by means of a vote.

Mr. K.AECKENBEECK (Belgium) thought a vote
should not be taken on the interpretation of a
vote; to do so might set a dangerous precedent.
Moreover, as the Committee had already heard
very many explanations of the vote, a fresh vote
would contribute nothing .to the debate. The rep­
resentatives had given their personal opinions on
the three points put forward by Mr. Feller.

Mr. :M:OROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) declared that the Australian representa­
tive's proposal was inadmissible because the
Committee could not vote on the interpretation of
a vote. It was not advisable, either, to take a vote
on the three points set out by Mr. Feller, as no
Committee hitherto had ever voted on a statement
made by a representative of the Secretariat. Mr.
Morozov thought he could see that the Committee
realized it had been wrong in rejecting the Egyp­
tian draft resolution. It could only annul its de­
cision by a two-thirds majority. That was the

Le representant de l'URSS considere, en outre,
que la Commission ne peut donner une interpre­
tation du vote que par une decision prise a
l'unanimite. Il serait contraire au reglement inte­
rieur de prendre une decision, puis, en interpre­
tant cette decision, d'adopter une nouvelle de­
cision qui pourrait ctre diametralernent opposee.
1\1. Morozov rappelle que M. Maktos avait insiste,
a l'epoque Oil iI etait President du Cornite special
du genocide, sur le fait qu'il ne saurait y avoir
interpretation d'un vote. Sa delegation n'ayant,
jusqu'ici, presente que des amendements, le
representant de l'Union sovietique reserve sa
position sur l'ensemble du probleme examine par
la Commission.

M. PETREN (Suede) declare qu'il a vote contre
le projet de resolution de l'Egypte et qu'il ap­
prouve les explications donnees par M. Feller.

M. TARAZI (Syrie), soulevant une question
d'ordre, rappelle que le President a declare, au
cours de la 118eme seance, qu'il etait inutile de
voter sur les considerants du projet de resolution
de i'Egypte si le dispositif de ce projet etait
rejete, Le representant de la Syrie fait remarquer
que le projet de l'Egypte contenait un seul con­
siderant et un dispositif divise en deux parties.
La Commission n'a rejete, estirne-t-il, que la
deuxieme partie de ce dispositif. Le representant
de la Syrie propose de mettre aux voix la premiere
partie visant a approuver les mesures deja prises
par le Secretaire general, a moins que le repre­
sentant de l'Egypte ne retire cette partie de son
projet.

:M. RAAFAT (Egypte) declare qu'il retire le
reste de son projet de resolution.

Le PRESIDENT rappelle que le representant de
l'Australie a dernande qu'il soit decide d'inscrire
au proces-verbal que la declaration faite par
M. Feller constitue l'interpretation correcte du
vote auquel la Commission vient de proceder sur
le projet de resolution de l'Egypte. Le President
estime qu'il lui est difficile de prendre une de­
cision sur ce point et qu'il convient de demar.. .ler
l'avis de la Commission.

M. DIGNAM (Australie ) ne voit ~'1('une ob­
jection a demander a la Commission de se pro­
noncer par un vote sur la demande qu'il a
forrnulee,

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique) pense qu'il ne
convient pas de voter sur l'interpretatioi. d'un vote.
Une telle procedure pourrait Creel' un precedent
facheux. En outre, etant donne que la Commis­
sion a, jusqu'ici, entendu un tres grand nombre
d'explications de vote, un nouveau vote ri'ajoute­
rait rien au debat. Les representants se sont pro­
nonces individuellement sur les trois points
enonces par M. Feller.

M. MOROZOV (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) declare que la proposition du
representant de l'Australie n'est pas recevable
car la Commission ne peut pas voter sur l'inter­
pretation- d'un vote. Par ailleurs, il ne convient
pas non plus de voter sur les trois points exposes
par M. Feller car jamais, jusqu'a present, une
Commission n'a vote sur une declaration d'un
representant du Secretariat. M. Morozov croit
pouvoir constater que la Commission se rend
compte qu'elle a rejete a tort le projet de resolu­
tion de l'Egypte. Elle ne peut maintenant annuler



a 4 . ; .

M. DE MARCHENA DUJARRIC (Republique Do­
minicaine) demande que la proposition austra­
lienne soit presentee par ecrit et distribuee aux
membres de la Commission.

M. CHAUMONT (France) partage les vues des
representants de la Republique Dominicaine et
de l'Egypte sur la necessite d'avoir un texte ecrit
avant d'examiner une proposition et sur le danger
qu'il y aurait a interpreter officiellement le vote
d'une commission et a creel' ainsi un precedent
que ni la Charte, ni le reglement interieur, ni
l'usage ne sauraient justifier.

only possible measure to take, at all events if the
Committee wished to resume its study of -the
Egyptian draft resolution.

Mr. MAKTOS (United States of America) con­
firmed that he had always been opposed to any
official interpretation of a vote and pointed out
that the Committee had never hitherto taken a
decision of that kind. He thought that, if such
a vote were taken, certain delegations would re­
gard it as prejudicial to the principle of equal
treatment for all members of the Committee.

Mr. DIGNAIII (Australia) withdrew his pro­
posal as he did not wish to appear to be departing
from that principle.

Nevertheless, in view of the very serious inter­
pretation which the Egyptian delegation had put
on the vote and also in view of the fact that the
majority of the Committee had not accepted that
point of view, he still thought that the doubts
raised by that interpretation should be settled in
an unambiguous way.

He therefore proposed that the Committee
should adopt a decision approving the statement
made by the representative of the Secretary-Gen­
eral regarding the vote on the Egyptian proposal
as amended by the USSR and should resolve that
the statement in question should be reproduced
in extenso in the summary record of the meeting.

Mr. DE MARCHENA DUJARRIC (Dominican Re­
public) asked that the Australian proposal should
be presented in written form and distributed to
the members of the Committee.

Mr. RAAFAT C.:..Jypt) did not consider that it
was for the Secretariat to make any statement giv­
ing the essence of a vote; he thought the explana­
tions furnished by the delegations themselves
were fully sufficient.

The significance of the vote, moreover, would
be absolutely clear if the Committee subsequ, itly
adopted the Belgian proposal. It would then be­
come evident that, in rejecting the Egyptian pro­
posal, the Committee had beeu actuated by a de­
sire for the main question raised by the Secretary­
General to be settled by the International Court
of Justice. The reason why the Committee con­
sidered it necessary to have recourse to the Inter­
national Court of Justice was that it was uncertain
whether the United Nations had the right to claim
reparation from a State for injuries incurred by
its agents in the exercise of their functions. It
was, therefore, logical to conclude that the right in
question could not be exercised until the Inter­
national Court of Justice had stated whether such
a right did, in fact, exist.

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) agreed with the rep­
resentatives of the Dominican Republic and of
Egypt that a written text must be provided before
a proposal could be studied and that to allow the
vote of a committee to be officially interpreted
might set a dangerous precedent which could not
be justified by the Charter, the rules of procedure
or custom.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium), while agree­
ing that the new Australian motion was in no way
an interpretation, pointed out that it could be
withdrawn without detriment to its author since,

sa decision qu'a la rnajorite des deux tiers. C'est
la la seule solution possible, si du moins la Com­
mission desire rep rendre l'examen du projet de
resolution de l'Egypte.

M. MAKTOS (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) confirme
qu'il a toujours ete oppose a toute interpretation
officielle d'un vote et il constate que la Commis­
sion n'a, jusqu'a present, jamais pris de decision
de cette nature. I1 craint que, si elle le faisait
actuellement, certaines delegations n'y voient une
atteinte au principe de l'egalite de traitement a
l'egard de tous les membres de la Commission.

M. DIGNAM (Australie ), ne voulant pas qu'elle
soit consideree comme derogeant a ce principe,
retire sa proposition.

Toutefois, etant donne l'interpretation parti­
culierement grave qui a ete donnee du vote par
la delegation egyptienne, etant donne, d'autre
part, que la rnajorite de la Commission n'accepte
pas ce point de vue, le representant de l'Australie
continue a croire que le doute souleve par cette
interpretation doit etre eclairci de maniere non
equivoque.

C'est pourquoi il propose que la Commission
adopte une decision selon laquelle la Commission
approuve la declaration faite par le representant
du Secretaire general au sujet du vote sur la
proposition de l'Egypte amendee par I'URSS et
decide que cette declaration sera reproduite in
extenso dans le compte rendu analytique de la
seance.

M. RAAFAT (Egypte) estime qu'il n'appartient
pas au Secretariat de faire, dans une declaration,
la synthese d'un vote et que les explications
fournies par les delegations elles-memes suffisent
amplement.

D'ailleurs, la signification du vote apparaitra
en pleine lumiere si la Commission se prononce
par la suite en faveur de la proposition belge.
Il deviendra alors evident que le rejet de la propo­
sition egyptienne a ete motive par le desir de la
Commission de faire trancher par la Cour inter­
nationale de Justice la question principale posee
par le Secretaire general. Si la Commission juge
ce recours necessaire, c'est qu'elle n'a pas de
certitude quant au droit pour l'Organisation des
Nations Unies de reclamer a un Etat la repara­
tion des dommages subis par ses agents dans
l'exercice de leurs fonctions. Il est done logique
d'en conclure que ce droit ne saurait etre exerce
avant que la Cour internationale de Justice n'ait

, donne son avis sur l'existence meme de ce droit.

I
I,

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique}, tout en re­
connaissant que la nouvelle motion de l'Australie
n'a aucun caractere irrterpretatif, fait remarquer
qu'elle pourrait etre abondonnee sans inconvenient



in any case, both Mr. Feller's statement and the
various explanations of votes would be mentioned
in the summary records. It would be sufficient to
ensure that they were fully recorded.

Mr. DIGNAM (Australia) withdrew his pro­
posal, as requested.

The CHAIRMAN then invited the Committee to
take a decision on the Belgian proposal to which
there were two United Kingdom amendments
[AjC.6j280 and AjC.6j283] and a joint French
and Iranian amendment [AjC.6j285].

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) explained that
the new Belgian draft [AjC.6/291] was a com­
bination of the original Belgian draft [A/C.6/275]
and the first United Kingdom amendment
[AjC.6j280] which was thus eliminated.

The aim of the United Kingdom supplementary
proposal [A/C.6j283] was to extend the scope
of the questions to be put to the International
Court of Justice. While the Belgian representa­
tive would not in principle, oppose the insertion
of those new questions in his proposal, he thought
they should first be discussed by the Committee.
Moreover, Certain drafting alterations would have
to be made in the Belgian text if those questions
were to be inserted. The United Kingdom sup­
plementary proposal could thus be regarded as an
addition to the Belgian proposal.

In that case, there would remain only one real
amendment: the joint French and Iranian amend­
ment. That amendment consisted, first, of a pre­
amble, the principle of which could be accepted;
and secondly of an important modification of the
form of the question to be put to the International
Court of Justice; the Belgian delegation was un­
able to accept the text of the question in that form.

He suggested that the Committee should first
take a decision on the principle of consulting the
International Court of Justice and then instruct
a drafting committee to prepare the text of the
question for submission to the Court.

Unless the Committee agreed to adopt that pro­
cedure it would be advisable, in order to avoid
voting on an abstract question, to proceed as fol­
lows: first, to vote on the French and Iranian
amendment; then, if that amendment were re­
jected, to vote on the 'new Belgian draft and,
finally, to vote on the additional questions pro­
posed by the United Kingdom, adoption of which
would also involve recourse to a drafting commit­
tee to prepare a definitive text. It was essential
that the request for an advisory opinion should be
drafted in carefully weighed and very precise
terms, as the reply of the International Court
would largely depend on its interpretation of the
text of the question submitted to it.

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) approved
the Belgian representative's suggestion that a de­
cision should first be taken on the advisability of
requesting the International Court of Justice to
give an advisory opinion. If the principle of con­
sulting the Court was adopted, a drafting com­
mittee should then prepare a joint text of the
questions to be submitted to the Court.

If that suggestion were not accepted and if the
Committee resolved to take a decision itself on
the proposals before it, the United Kingdom rep-

.q

par son auteur, puisque, de toute facon, aussi
bien la declaration de M. Feller que les explica­
tions de vote feront l'objet d'une mention au
compte rendu analytique et qu'il suffira de veiller
it ce que cette mention soit complete.

M. DIGNAM (Australie), acquiescant it la
demande qui lui est faite, retire sa proposition.

Le PRESIDENT invite alors la Commission it se
prononcer sur la proposition belge qui fait l'objet
de deux amendements du Royaume-Uni [AjC.6/
280 et AjC.6/283] et d'un amendement commun
de la France et de l'Iran [AjC.6/285].

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique) precise que la
nouvelle version du projet belge [A/C.6j291]
est une fusion du projet primitif [AjC.6j275]
avec le premier amendement du Royaume-Uni
[A/C.6/280] qui se trouve ainsi elimine.

La proposition supplernentaire du Royaume­
Uni [AjC.6j283] a pour objet d'elargir le champ
des questions it poser it la Cour internationale
de Justice. Le representant de la Be1gique ne
serait pas oppose, en principe, a. l'insertion de
ces questions nouve1les dans sa proposition, mais
il estime qu'elles devraient d'abord etre discutees
par la Commission et que, (;D outre, leur inclusion
dans le texte belge rendrait necesssires certains
remaniements d'ordre redactionnel. L.:: proposi­
tion supplementaire du Royaume-Uni pourrait
done etre consideree comme une addition a la
proposition beIge.

I1 ne resterait, dans ce cas, qu'un seul amen­
dement veritable, ce1ui qui est presente conjointe­
ment par les delegations de la France et de l'Iran.
Cet amendement contient d'abord un preambule,
dont le principe pourrait etre admis, et ensuite
une modification importante des termes de la
question a poser it la Cour internationale de Jus­
tice dont le texte, ainsi redige, ne pourrait pas
etre accepte par la delegation belge,

M. Kaeckenbeeck suggere que la Commission
se prononce d'abord sur le principe merne de la
consultation de la Cour internationale de Justice
et qu'ensuite elle confie a un comite de redac­
tion le soin de mettre au point le texte de la
question a poser a. la Cour.

's: la Commission n'acceptait pas de suivre cette
procedure, afin d'eviter un vote sur une ques­
tion abstraite, il conviendrait de mettre aux voix
d'abord l'amendement de la France et de l'Iran,
puis, en cas de rejet, le nouveau projet belge et
enfin les questions additionnelles proposees par
le Royaume-Uni, dont l'adoption entrainerait
egalement le recours a un comite de redaction
pour l'etablissement d'un texte definitif. Il est
essentiel, en effet, que la demande d'avis con­
sultatif soit redigee en' termes longuement peses
et d'une grande precision, car la reponse de la
Cour dependra, dans une large mesure, du sens
qu'elle donnera au texte de la question qui lui
sera posee.

M. FI'I'ZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) approuve la
suggestion du representant de la Belgique tendant
a decider d'abord s'il y a lieu d'adresser une
demande d'avis consultatif a la Cour internatio­
nale de Justice. Si le principe de cette consulta­
tion est adopte, un comite de redaction devra
alors elaborer un texte commun sur les questions
a poser a. la Cour.

Si cette suggestion n'etait pas retenue et si la
Commission entendait se prononcer directement
sur les propositions dont elle est saisie, le repre-

602



> resentative thought the Committee should vote
first on the new Belgian proposal which solved
the first part of the problem and then on the sup­
plementary questions to be submitted to the Court,
taking as its basic text the United Kingdom pro­
posal. If both those proposals were adopted, a
drafting committee would be asked to combine
them in a single text.

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) pointed out that the
aim of the French and Iranian amendment was
the same as that of the Belgian and United King­
dom proposals, namely, to refer the question to
the International Court of Justice; it differed only
as regards the wording of the question to be sub­
mitted and the insertion of a preamble. The French
representative suggested that a drafting committee
should be charged to combine those three pro­
posals in a single text.

Mr. ABDoH (Iran) agreed with the French
representative.

He pointed out that the Belgian delegation was
not opposed, in principle, to including a preamble
in its proposal. After the vote on the Egyptian
draft resolution, the insertion of a preamble was
particularly important since the majority of the
Committee had clearly expressed a desire to find
some means of acknowledging the capacity of the
United Nations to take action with regard to
reparation for injuries incurred by its agents. It
therefore seemed possible to arrive at a single
text combining the two proposals and the French
and Iranian amendment.

Mr. SPIROPOULOS (Greece) also thought the
Committee should first take a decision on the
principle of recourse to the International Court
of Justice and then instruct a drafting committee
to prepare the final text of the question it was
proposed to submit.

As regards the United Kingdom supplementary
proposal it fell into two parts: the first part cor­
responded to the question raised in the Belgian
proposal; in the second part, the United Kingdom
delegation proposed to ask the International Court
how actions to obtain reparation instituted by the
United Nations could be reconciled with those of
the State of which the victim was a national; and
secondly what steps should be taken to invest the
United Nations with the capacity to institute an
action for reparation if the Court did not admit
that it had that capacity.

Mr. Spiropoulos remarked that the last two
questions could not be submitted to the Court,
which could only reply on points of law and could
not provide solutions for the difficulties which
might be submitted to it.

Mr. ORIBE (Uruguay) said he favoured the
principle of consulting the International Court
of Justice. He thought that the request for an
opinion should be prepared with the greatest care
by a drafting committee as the text would raise
questions of international law to which the South
American States attached great importance.

Mr. CHAUMONT (France) stated that his dele­
gation could not approve the second procedure
suggested by the Belgian representative, which
consisted in voting first on the French and Iranian

; 4U

sentant du Royaume-Uni pense qu'elle devrait
d'abord voter sur la nouvelle proposition belga,
qui resout la premiere partie du probleme, e;
qu'ensuite elle devrait se prononcer sur les que!:.­
tions supplementaires it poser it la Cour, en pre­
nant pour texte de base la proposition du Royau­
me-Uni. Un comite de redaction serait ensuite
charge de fondre en un seul texte ces deux pro­
positions, si elles etaient adoptees.

M. CHAUMONT (France) fait observer que
l'amendement de la France et de l'Iran a le
meme objet que les propositions de la Belgique
et du Royaume-Uni, it savoir le renvoi de la
question it la Cour internationale de Justice; it

. ne differe d'elles que par le texte de la ques­
tion a poser et l'insertion d'un preambule. Le
representant de la France suggere que ces trois
propositions soient confiees a un comite de re­
daction qui etablirait une formule unique.

M. ABDoH (Iran) partage le point de VUe du
representant de la France.

I1 constate que la delegation belge ne s'oppose
pas, en principe, it l'inclusion de considerants
dans sa proposition. Ces considerants sont d'au­
tant plus necessaires, it la suite du vote sur le
projet de resolution de l'Egypte, que la majorite
de la Commission a nettement exprime son desir
de trouver un moyen pour reconnaitre it l'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies la capacite d'agir en
reparation des dommages. corporels subis par
ses agents. I1 semble done possible d'aboutir a
I'elaboration d'un texte unique qui tienne compte
des deux propositions et de l'amendement de la
France et de l'Iran.

M. SPIROPOULQS (Grece) est egalement d'avis
que la Commission devrait se prononcer d'abord
sur le principe du renvoi a la Cour internationale
de Justice et charger ensuite un comite de re­
daction d'etablir le texte definitif du projet de
question a poser.

En ce qui concerne la proposition supplemen­
taire du Royaume-Uni, le representant de la
Grece constate qu'elle se divise en deux parties:
la premiere correspond a la question posee par
la proposition belge; dans la seconde partie, la
delegation du Royaume-Uni propose de demander
a la Cour, d'une part, comment l'action en re­
paration exercee par l'Organisation des Nations
Unies pourrait etre conciliee avec l'action de
l'Etat dont la, victime est ressortissante et,
d'autre part, queUes mesures il y aurait lieu de
prendre pour conferer a l'Organisation la capa­
cite d'agir en reparation au cas ou la Cour ne
Iui reconnaitrait pas cette capacite,

M. Spiropoulos fait observer que ccs deux
dernieres questions ne sauraient etre posees it la
Cour, qui ne peut repondre que sur des points
de droit, et non proposer des solutions aUX diffi­
cultes qu'on voudrait lui soumettre.

M. ORIBE (Uruguay) se declare en faveur du
principe de la consultation de la Cour interna­
tionale de Justice. n estime que la demande
d'avis devrait etre elaboree avec le plus gland
soin par un comite de redaction, car son texte
est appele it soulever des questions de droit inter­
national auxquelles les Etats de l'Amerique du
Sud attachent une grande importance.

M. CHAUMONT (France) precise que sa dele­
gation ne saurait approuver la seconde procedure
envisages par le representant de la Belgique,
consistant a voter d'abord sur l'amendement de

603



amendment and then on the Belgian and United
Kingdom proposals. In his opinion, the only ac­
ceptable method was to refer those three texts
to a drafting committee as soon as the Committee
had decided on the principle of submitting a re­
quest for an advisory opinion to the International
Court of Justice.

Mr. PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela) recalled that
from the beginning (114th meeting) he had sup­
ported the Belgian proposal and the principle of
asking the International Court of Justice for an
advisory opinion.

He thought, however, that a practical result
should be achieved as soon as possible. For that
reason he proposed that the final text of the draft
resolution prepared by the drafting committee
should request the Secretary-General in the light
of the advisory opinion given by the International
Court of Justice, to prepare a draft solution of
the problem as a whole, for submission to the
General Assembly at its fourth session.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) thought the
Venezuelan proposal was important. He did not
object to a preamble to the Belgian proposal or
to the proposal being followed by instructions to
the Secretary-General, provided those instructions
did not prejudge the opinion of the International
Court of Justice.

The meeting rose at 6 p.m.

HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIRST
MEETING

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
on Thursday, 25 November 1948, at 10.30 a.m,

Chairman: Mr. R. J. ALFARO (Panama).

71. Continuation of the consideration of
the memorandum of the Secretary­
General relating to reparation for
injuries incurred in the service of
the United Nations

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium) suggested that,
in order to save time, all the proposals and amend­
ments on the subject of the question to be ad­
dressed to the International Court of Justice might
be combined to form a unified text. His delega­
tion, in consultation with that of the United
Kingdom, had submitted the text of a draft ques­
tion [A/C.6/291]. In the joint French and Iranian
amendment [A/C.6/285] to the original Belgium
draft [A/C.6/275/Rev.l/Corr.l] the question
was put in a Jifferent form in order to avoid
casting too much doubt on the capacity of the
United Nations to make an international claim
under existing law. Since the submission of that
amendment, however, further doubts had been
expressed, so there no longer appeared to be any
valid reason for objecting to the wording used
in the joint United Kingdom and Belgian draft.
If the representatives of France and Iran would
agree to withdraw their amendment, his delega­
tion would be prepared to accept the insertion of
the first and fourth paragraphs of the preamble
of their amendment in the draft resolution to be
submitted to the General Assembly. A further
addition could be made requesting the Secretary-

la France et de l'Iran et, ensuite, sur la proposi­
tion de la Belgique et sur celle du Royaume­
Uni, A son avis, la seule solution acceptable est
le renvoi de ces trois textes a un comite de
redaction, des que la Commission aura decide,
en principe, qu'il y a lieu d'adresser une demande
d'avis consultatif a la Cour internationale de
Justice.

M. PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela) rappelle qu'il a,
des le debut (l14eme seance), appuye la proposi­
tion belge et le principe d'une demande d'avis
consultatif a la Cour internationale de Justice.

Mais le representant du Venezuela considere
qu'il importe d'aboutir au plus tot a un resultat
pratique. C'est pourquoi il propose que le projet
de resolution qui sera definitivement etabli par
le comite de redaction contienne une invitation
au Secretaire general d'elaborer, a la lumiere de
l'avis emis par la Cour internationale de Justice,
un projet de solution d'ensemble du problerne
qui sera soumis a l'Assemblee generale lors de
sa quatrieme session.

M. KAEcKENBEEcK (Belgique) pense que la
proposition du Venezuela offre un interet certain
et il ne s'oppose ni a ce que la proposition belge
soit precedee de considerants, ni a ce qu'elle
soit suivie d'instructions au Secretaire general,
a condition que celles-ci ne prejugent pas l'avis
de la Cour internationale de Justice.

La seance est levee a 18 heures.

CENT·VINGT ET UNIEME SEANCE

Tenue au Palais de Chadlot, Paris,
le jeudi 25 nouembre 1948, a10 h. 30.

President: M. R. J. ALFARO (Panama).

71. Suite de l'examen du memorandum
du Seeretaire general concernant Ies
reparations pour dommages corpo­
rels suhis an service des Nations
Unies

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique) propose, afin de
gagner du temps, de fondre en un seul texte
toutes les propositions et tous les amendements
relatifs a la question qui doit etre posee a la
Cour internationale de Justice. Sa delegation a
presente, conjointement avec la delegation du
Royaume-Uni, le texte d'un projet de question
[A/C.6/291]. Dans l'amendement presente con­
jointement par la France et l'Iran [A/C.6/285]
au projet prirnitivement propose par la Belgique
[A/C.6/275/Rev.l/Corr.l], la question est pre­
sentee sous une forme differente afin d'eviter de
mettre trop en doute la capacite de 1'0rganisation
des Nations Unies pour presenter une reclama­
tion sur le plan international en vertu du droit
en vigueur. Or, depuis que cet amendement a
ete presente, d'autres doutes ont ete exprimes,
si bien qu'il n'y a plus apparemment de raison
valable de s'opposer aux termes employes dans
le projet presente conjointement par le Royau­
me-Uni et la Belgique. Si les representants de
la France et de l'Iran consentaient a retirer leur
amendernent, la delegation de la Belgique serait
disposee a accepter que l'on ajoute les premier
et quatrieme paragraphes du preambule de cet

604


	Binder2.pdf
	biton0004A06
	biton0004A07
	biton0004A08
	biton0004A09
	biton0004A10
	biton0004A11
	biton0004A12
	biton0004B01
	biton0004B02
	biton0004B03
	biton0004B04
	biton0004B05




